MINUTES
WORK SESSION
LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Thursday, December 14, 2023

BE IT REMEMBERED that the Luna County Board of County Commissioners met at 9:30 am. on
Thursday, December 14, 2023, in Chambers of the Luna County Courthouse, Deming, New Mexico,
for the purpose of conducting a Work Session.

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Sweetser called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. and led the Pledge of
Allegiance and the salute to the flag of New Mexico.

ROLL CALL: Deputy Clerk Toni Esparza called Roll. The following Commissioners constituting a
quorum were present:

Ray J. Trejo, District 1
Colette M. Chandler, District 2
John S. Sweetser Chair, District 3

PUBLIC COMMENT: Luna County Community members Russell Johnson, Leedrue Hyatt, Jody
Jonson, Joe Bill Nunn, Lori Coleman, Eddie Mesa, Rebecca Hughes, and Jolene Nunn all spoke in
opposition to the National Monument proposal. Mr. Russell Johnson stated that he is a fourth-
generation cattle rancher on the Three Sister Mountains and also serves as the president of Luna
County Farm and Livestock Bureau. Mr. Johnson stated that the national monument designation is
strongly opposed and is wrong for Luna County. Mr. Johnson stated that Commissioner Trejo kept
this proposal from everyone including fellow Commissioners, our State Representative, and Senator.
Mr. Johnson stated that support for this monument is coming from outside of Luna County with no
community input. Mr. Johnson stated that designating a monument could add additional fees and
limitations hindering access to areas that the public is currently enjoying. Mr. Wes Light, President
of Friends of the Floridas, stated that the reason for Friends of the Floridas was to protect the scenic
beauty and the contribution to Luna County's economy. Mr. Light stated that the intention for
wanting to protect the Florida Mountains in the condition that they are in now is to stop electric
windmills, solar fields, transmission lines, and industrial mines from coming in that Luna County
Does not need. Mr. Light stated that in looking into the outdoor recreation and what is planning to
do, what has been done, and what he hopes to get done in the future. Mr. Leedrue Hyatt stated that
he is a fourth-generation rancher at Cook’s Peak. Mr. Hyatt stated that all four generations have spent
many years making improvements and taking care of the land. Mr. Hyatt stated that this National
Monument would stop all progress of everything that still needs to be done. Mr. Hyatt stated that
Law enforcement officers are restricted from entering National Monument Land, therefore allowing
illegal activity to happen. Ms. Carol Felsing spoke in favor of the National Monument stating that
every year her family comes down from the Midwest and always wants to include a picnic and a hike
in the Floridas for the Spring flower show. Ms. Felsing stated that becoming a National Monument
will make it a more special event and ensure that its beauty will be protected for generations to come.
Ms. Felsing stated that she is also the president of the Luna County Ranchette Owners Association.
Ms. Felsing stated that there will be a meeting held on Monday, December 18, 2023, to consider a

LCBCC MINUTES WORK SESSION DECEMBER 14, 2023 PAGE 1 0F 2



resolution in support of the Mimbres Desert Peaks National Monument. Ms. Jody Johnson stated that
if this national monument comes to be, there will be people that nobody knows who will have
stewardship with the BLM to control what happens on these lands. Ms. Johnson stated that not only
will this give the government control of the land but also the water rights as well. Mr. Joe Bill Nunn
stated that he is opposed to the designated National Monument stating that it is nothing more than a
Federal land grab pushed by a Las Cruces group and Commissioner Trejo. Mr. Nunn stated that if this
proposal is passed, the property values inside of a monument designation and even close to the
monument will substantially be decreased. Mr. Nunn stated that no motorized vehicles would be
allowed, causing the tourists and hunters to have to hike in instead. Ms. Lori Coleman stated that she
is a small miner of 14 years on BLM land here in Luna County in the Florida Mountains. Ms. Coleman
stated that she sources her rock here and sells it online and in her shops in Alto and Deming. Ms.
Coleman stated that her BLM and New Mexico Mining and Morals Representatives informed her that
she could possibly be grandfathered on any actively open mines she has now. Mr. Eddie Mesa stated
that there was a letter drafted to the President of the United States requesting a signature to get this
declaration passed. Mr. Mesa stated that there have been numerous meetings, a website, and
sponsors gathered without any public input. Mr. Mesa stated that he had had a conversation with
Commissioner Trejo before the Public announcement. Mr. Mesa stated that Commissioner Trejo told
him and he quoted Commissioner Trejo in saying that he did not reach out to the ranching
community, “because we cause too much havoc and trouble.” Mr. Mesa stated that he felt that a
wedge had been permanently driven between the ranching and agricultural community and the
organization that is trying to get this proposal passed. Ms. Rebecca Hughes stated that she is third
third-generation rancher and her grandchildren who help her to maintain her land will be the fifth-
generation. Ms. Hughes stated that she is against having windmills in front of the mountain. Ms.
Hughes has been on the East side of the state for many years and said that powerlines, windmills, and
oil fields are everywhere and this is what takes the beauty away from any place. Ms. Jolene Nunn
stated that she owns a business in tourism in an RV park North of town and also a ranch. Ms. Nunn
stated that there are people who come from all over the country, and bring their ATVs to go to Cook’s
Town, Fort Cummings, and other places. Ms. Nunn stated that when the trails are shut down and
there are only a couple of designated roads they will not be able to go out and explore. (*Note: Items
were presented for discussion only and no actions were taken.)

ADJOURN: Chair Sweetser Adjourned the meeting at 10:08 a.m.

ATTEST: LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Berenda McWright, Luna County Clerk Ray ]. Trejo, District 1
Approved:

Colette M. Chandler, District 2

John S. Sweetser, District 3

LCBCC MINUTES WORK SESSION DECEMBER 14, 2023 PAGE20F 2



MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING
LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS
Thursday, December 14, 2023

BE IT REMEMBERED that the Luna County Board of County Commissioners met in regular session
at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, December 14, 2023, in the County Commission Chambers of the Luna
County Courthouse, Deming, New Mexico, for the purpose of conducting any and all business to come
properly before the Board.

The following staff and elected officials were present: County Manager Chris Brice, County
Attorney Charles Kretek, Business Office Administrative Assistant Grisel Taylor, Director of Public
Safety Pablo Montoya, HR Director Rosa Porras, HR/Legal Assistant Malarie Carlos, Clerk Berenda
McWright, Chief Deputy Clerk Leslie Nabours, Probate Judge Diana Diaz, Administrative Assistant
Senior Toni Esparza, Undersheriff Jimmy Garcia, Captain Michael Brown, LCDC Director Lee Cook,
Grant Director Bryan Reedy, Deputy Director Yossie Nieblas, JJCS Program Coordinator Anadely
Martinez, Program Director Tanya Ortiz, Starmax Director Chadwick Troyer, IT Technicians Joseph
Apodaca and Hannah Crouch.

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Sweetser called the meeting to order at 10:22 a.m. after the Pledge of
Allegiance and the salute to the flag of the State of New Mexico.

ROLL CALL: Deputy Clerk Toni Esparza called Roll. The following members of the Board constituting
a quorum were present:
Ray Trejo, District 1
Colette M Chandler, District 2
John S. Sweetser, Chair District 3

MINUTES: Commissioner Chandler motioned to approve the minutes for the Work Session on
November 16, 2023, and the Regular Meeting on November 16, 2023. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Trejo and was unanimously approved.

SERVICE AWARDS:
e Casa Program Manager Tanya Ortiz presented Deputy Manager Joanna Vasquez with her pin
for five years of service.

SPECIAL RECOGNITION:
e Luna County Deputy Sheriff Adolfo Olivas was not present to receive his recognition for
graduating from the NM Law Enforcement Academy and for receiving the Academic Award
and being named Valedictorian of his class.

CONSENT AGENDA:
e Accounts Payable: $1,071,43.47
e Payroll: $1,664,151.03
e Resolution 23-84: Budget Increases
e Resolution 23-85: Budget Transfers

PAGE 1 OF 5

LCBCC REGUAR MEETING DECEMBER 14, 2023



Commissioner Trejo motioned to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Chandler and was unanimously approved following a roll call vote.

Public Hearing:

Amended Ordinance 2: An Ordinance imposing a Lodger’s Tax: County Attorney Charles
Kretek stated that the Lodger’s Tax is set at five percent and will not be raised. Mr. Kretek
stated that the change that was made was that instead of the ordinance just saying only for
tourism, and has now been expanded for other uses related to economic development as well.
Commissioner Chandler motioned to approve Amended Ordinance 2: An Ordinance imposing
a Lodger’s Tax. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Trejo and was unanimously
approved following a roll call vote.

Amended Ordinance 5: Imposing a Business Registration Fee: Mr. Kretek stated that
currently the Business Registration Fee is set at $25.00, which was set in 1989. Mr. Kretek
stated that this will now be raised to $50.00 per year. Mr. Kretek also stated that both the
Lodger’s Tax and Business Registration will be moved to the Planning and Zoning
Department from the Clerk’s Office. Commissioner Trejo motioned to approve Ordinance 5:
An Ordinance imposing a Business Registration Fee. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Chandler and was unanimously approved following a roll call vote.

Ordinance 118: An Ordinance relating to addressing, road naming, and street signs:
Commissioner Chandler motioned to approve Ordinance 118: An Ordinance relating to
addressing, road naming, and street signs. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Trejo
and was approved following a roll call vote.

New Business:

Luna County Holiday Schedule: Commissioner Trejo motioned to approve the Luna County
Holiday Schedule. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chandler and was
unanimously approved following a roll call vote.

Resolution 23-86: A Resolution Establishing Volunteer Fire Department Retention and
Recruitment Program: Commissioner Chandler motioned to approve Resolution 23-86: A
Resolution Establishing Volunteer Fire Department Retention and Recruitment Program.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Trejo and was unanimously approved following
aroll call vote.

Resolution 23-87: Call to amend County Ordinances 115 and 116; an Ordinance
amending two IRBS, the first among the County, Solar PV Development NM 18 II LLC
and Carne Solar Bondco, LLC for the Carne Solar Project Series 20224, and the Second
among the County, Carne Energy Storage, LLC and Carne Storage Bondco, LLC for the
Carne Solar Project Series 2022B: Peter Kelton stated that he was here to authorize the
County to publish notice for the consideration of the amending ordinance and would also
ratify the mailing of notice letters. Mr. Kelton stated that the amendment would help to add
additional property to the IRB projects that were approved by ordinance earlier this year.
Mr. Kelton stated that there would be no increase in the size of the project from a dollar
perspective. Commissioner Trejo motioned to approve Resolution 23-87: A call to amend
County Ordinances 115 and 116: an Ordinance amending two IRBS, the first among the

PAGE20F5

LCBCC REGUAR MEETING DECEMBER 14, 2023



County, Solar PV Development NM 18 II LLC and Carne Solar Bondco, LLC for the Carne Solar
Project, Series 2022 A, and the second among the County, Carne Energy Storage, LLC and
Carne Storage Bondco, LLC for the Carne Solar Project, Series 2022B. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Chandler and carried unanimously following a roll call vote.

Indigent Claims Report: Commissioner Chandler motioned to recess as County Commission and
convene as a Claims Board. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Trejo and was unanimously
approved. County Manager Chris Brice reported that there were a total of 6 claims of $15,625.34
none of which were for the Detention Center. Mr. Brice stated that as of November 30, 2023, the is a
total of $386,686.75 encumbered, with a total balance of $ 1,957,177.05. Commissioner Chandler
motioned to approve the claims dated December 14, 2023, in the amount of $15,625.34. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Trejo and unanimously approved. Commissioner Chandler
motioned to recess as a Claims Board and reconvene as County Commission. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Trejo and was unanimously approved.

Community Support Reports: Executive Director of the Council Christie Ann Harvey Stated that the
foundation holes for the installation of the Starmax sign were drilled last week and concrete should
be poured by the end of this week. Ms. Harvey stated that the sign should be set late next week after
curing. The Office of Broadband Access and Expansion Capacity grant request for $99,000.00 was
submitted on November 17, 2023, to the State. Ms. Harvey stated that Resound Networks continues
planning their scheduled work to begin here in Luna County by the end of the first quarter of next
year, connecting over 1,000 people. Ms. Harvey stated that she has scheduled a meeting with Franny
Miller NMSU Assistant Professor of Agriculture and Natural Resources Policy to plan an event to be
held in Luna County next Summer. Ms. Harvey stated that the Border Authority held a special
meeting on November 12, 2023, at the Dona Ana Government Center and Commission Chambers. Ms.
Harvey stated that she brought up a discussion of Border Area Industry and Logistics study and
strategy for cross-border growth. Ms. Harvey stated that the Council Film Office met with Aaron
Leventhman Director of outreach and special events for the New Mexico Film Office about a program
to bring Veterans with certain skill sets into the movie industry. Ms. Harvey stated that she had
previously mentioned a Department of Energy Transmission Siding and Economic Development
grant, which was brought up by Strategies 360. Ms. Harvey stated that Strategies 360 offered to not
only write the grant but also pay the five percent match if needed for the County. Ms. Harvey stated
that a letter of intent was required and written by Strategies 360, perfected by the County and filed.
Ms. Harvey stated that the letter of intent is asking for $2,000,000.00 for the project to build two film
studios here in Luna County. Ms. Harvey stated that she set up a meeting with Western New Mexico
University Vice President Dr. Wes, Director Ortiz of Construction Trades, and Director Manny
Rodriguez to talk about combining two proposed classes into one dealing in the construction trades.
Ms. Harvey stated that this class is targeted to begin with the March semester dealing with drywall,
framing, basic safety, and power tools. Ms. Harvey stated that this class will give the students four
credit hours. Ms. Harvey stated that some of the other classes that are being considered are HVAC,
Plumbing, and Diesel Mechanics.

Executive Director of the Deming Luna County Main Street Program Chelsea Evans thanked Luna
County for helping make the Christmas activities special including getting the park ready for the
festivities, putting up the big Christmas tree, and entering two floats in the Christmas Parade. Ms.
Evans stated that eight businesses participated in the Christmas decorating contest for cash prizes.

PAGE3 OF5

LCBCC REGUAR MEETING DECEMBER 14, 2023



Ms. Evans stated that the EIf on the Shelf game is still going on which was created to get the
community to get into the small businesses downtown.

Executive Director of the Chamber of Commerce Tarcia Rebeiz thanked the County for their support
throughout the year. Ms. Rebeiz stated that she would like to invite the public to the Chamber Holiday
in the Park to be held on Sunday, December 17, 2023, from 10:00 to 5:00 and to wear an ugly sweater
to the event.

Elected Officials Report:
Assessor: No Report Given

Clerk: Clerk Berenda McWright reported that on November 28, 2023, after the Regular Local
Election, the State Canvasing Board met to certify the Elections Statewide. Ms. McWright stated that
it was determined that two candidates in Columbus Trustee met the criteria for a re-count. Ms.
McWright stated that William Dean Johnson and Wilson Edward Moore were within six votes of each
other. Ms. McWright stated that on Wednesday, December 6, 2023, the Clerk’s Office conducted the
re-count by first hand tallying up to 100 ballots and then feeding those ballots into the Tabulator to
determine if the totals matched, which they did. Ms. McWright stated that the State Canvasing Board
met again on December 12, 2023, and finalized the certification of the 2023 Regular Local Election.
Ms. Mc Wright stated that the Clerk’s Office has conducted several re-counts over the years and have
never had any total changes. Ms. McWright stated that the Clerk’s Office also conducted an audit and
the auditor chose precinct three for the Mayor race, City Council District 1, as well as the Deming Soil
and Water Conservation District Supervisor. Ms. Mc Wright stated that ballots for those races in
Precinct Three were all hand tallied and compared against the results for Election night and again
there were no changes.

Probate Judge: No Report Given
Treasurer: No Report Given

Sheriff: Captain Michael Brown Reported that last month there were eight larceny reports, four
accidents, seven burglaries, seven assaults, three DWIs, and four motor vehicle thefts. Captain Brown
stated that assaults were down over the previous month, burglaries were down, larcenies were up,
criminal cases overall were down, non-criminal/civil was down, and accidents were down
significantly, and DWIs were up. Captain Brown stated that there were 13 applicants for Deputy
Sheriff which has been narrowed down to three who showed up for interviews yesterday. Captain
Brown stated that the Shop with a Cop event will be taking place this Saturday, December 16, 2023,
At Walmart and 350 children are expected.

Commissioners: Commissioner Trejo thanked the County Volunteer Fire Department in assisting
with the fire which took his sister’s home about a month ago. Commissioner Trejo stated that he
watched the volunteers work on putting out the fire and wondered why they are not paid for what
they do.

County Managers Report: Mr. Brice stated that to second what Ms. Evans said bout the Christmas
parade it was a great event and the County had two floats entered and thanked everyone who helped

PAGE4 OF 5

LCBCC REGUAR MEETING DECEMBER 14, 2023



decorate. Mr. Brice wanted to give a special thanks to the Maintenance Department for all that they
do. Mr. Brice stated that the County is finalizing Capital Outlay Projects for submission to both the
Governor and our legislatures. Mr. Brice stated that he and City Administrator Aaron Sera had gotten
together and sent a letter about two months ago presenting the major wants and needs of the County
and City for funding requests. Mr. Brice stated that Grant Director Bryan Reedy and Deputy Director
Yossie Nieblas are finishing up this request to be submitted on January 6, 2024. Mr. Brice stated that
for both the Industrial Park roads and the BERM project, the County just needs to finalize a bit more
land to get started. Mr. Brice stated that the bid should go out in January. Mr. Brice stated that there
is construction going on by Starmax on the outside for the skate park. Mr. Brice stated that the
outdoor activities construction will be done in phases. The skate park, basketball courts, and
pickleball courts will be the first phase. Mr. Brice stated that the second phase will consist of the
metal building which will become the bathroom and concession facilities. Mr. Brice stated that the
batting cages would be the third phase and they are looking at having all of this construction
completed by spring or early summer next year. Mr. Brice stated that construction of the kitchen,
bar, restaurant, and outdoor seating is very close to starting. Mr. Brice stated that the County held a
couple of active shooter trainings one at Starmax and one here in the courthouse building. Mr. Brice
stated that although it is an inconvenience to the public for the courthouse to be closed these
trainings are necessary. Mr. Brice stated that he would like to do active shooter trainings if not every
six months, at least annually.

Upcoming Meetings/Events (Unless otherwise specified):
e Luna County Offices closed; December 22, 2023
Luna County Offices Closed; December 25, 2023
Public Input Work Session, January 11, 2024, from 9:30 a.m. - 10:00 a.m.
Regular Meeting, January 11, 2024, at 10 a.m.

e & e

Adjourn: Chair Sweetser adjourned the meeting adjourned at 10:58 am.

ATTEST: LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Berenda McWright, Luna County Clerk Ray J. Trejo, District 1
Approved:

Colette M. Chandler, District 2

John S. Sweetser, District 3



LCBCC Meeting January 11, 2024

12/01/2023
12/01/2023
12/01/2023
12/01/2023
12/07/2023
12/08/2023
12/08/2023
12/08/2023
12/15/2023
12/15/2023
12/15/2023
12/15/2023
12/21/2023
12/21/2023
12/21/2023
12/21/2023
12/29/2023
12/29/2023
12/29/2023
12/29/2023

P-Cards

November

Accounts Payable

$418,182.98
$22,498.83
$520.00
$19,625.81
$9,569.32
$404.,688.04
$10,856.80
$4.,313.94
$175,970.60
$14,204.86
$38,411.78
$809.00
$704,112.40
$15,576.16
$85,569.56
$241.00
$359,113.80
$3,693.61
$5,806.96
$362.00

2023 $302,292.13

Total $2,596,419.58



Luna County
Board of County Commissioners

Agenda 1/11/2024

PAYROLL
Date Register Amount

11/29/2023 20230202 $610,382.55
11/30/2023 *20230203 $14,132.06
12/13/2023 20230204 $651,391.97
12/14/2023 *20230205 $34,928.16
12/19/2023 *20230206 $56.81
12/27/2023 20230207 $653,243.78
12/28/2023 *20230208 $8,169.39

Total: $1,972,304.72

" Special Assignment Pay




Be it remembered that at a Regular Meeting of the Board of County Commissioners of Luna County
in Deming New Mexico, on the 11th day of January 2024, the following proceedings were had and
entered of record.

RESOLUTION #24-01
NOTICE OF MEETINGS

WHEREAS, the Open Meetings Act, Section 10-15-1 to 4 NMSA 1978, as amended 1s in effect:

and

WHEREAS, meetings of the Luna County Board of County Commissioners desire to comply with
the provisions of the aforementioned Act; and

WHEREAS, Section 10-15-1 (D) of the Open Meetings Act requires that the Luna County Board
of County Commissioners shall annually make a determination regarding what shall be considered
reasonable notice to the public meetings:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1.

All meetings shall be held in the County Commission Chambers of the Luna County
Courthouse, 700 S. Silver Avenue, Deming, New Mexico or as indicated in the meeting
notice.

Unless otherwise specified, regular meetings shall be held on the 2™ Thursday of each
month at 10:00 a.m. An agenda will be available 72 hours prior to the meeting on the
county website and in the office of the County Manager, Luna County Courthouse, at 700
S. Silver Avenue, Deming, New Mexico. Notice of changes to the scheduled date of a
regular meeting will be given ten (10) days in advance of the meeting date. The notice
shall indicate how a copy of the agenda may be obtained.

a. Any member of the Board of County Commissioners or the County Manager is
authorized to determine those items to be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting.

A work session may be called by the Chairperson or a majority of the Commission
members upon 72 hours (3 days) notice. The notice shall include an agenda for the meeting
or information on how members of the public may obtain a copy of the agenda. The agenda
shall be available to the public at least 72 hours before any special meeting.

Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or a majority of the Commission
members upon 72 hours (3 days) notice. The notice shall include an agenda for the meeting
or information on how members of the public may obtain a copy of the agenda. The agenda
shall be available to the public at least 72 hours before any special meeting.

1 | Page



5. Emergency meetings will be called only under unforeseen circumstances which may
demand immediate action to protect the health, safety and property of citizens, or to protect
the public body from substantial financial loss. The Luna County Board of County
Commissioners will avoid emergency meetings whenever possible. Emergency meetings
may be called by the Chairperson or a majority of the Commission members upon 24 hour
notice, unless threat of personal injury or property damage requires less notice. The notice
shall include an agenda for the meeting or information on how members of the public may
obtain a copy of the agenda. The notice for all emergency meetings will be posted in the
Luna County Manager’s Office and the Luna County Clerks’ Office and notification will
be given to the media. A report of any action taken in an emergency meeting shall be sent
to the Office of the Attorney General within 10 days unless a state or national emergency
has been declared.

6. During the pendency of the COVID-19 declared emergency, a member of the Board of
County Commissioners or any of its Boards may participate in a meeting by any means of
a conference telephone, internet, or other similar communications equipment when
necessary as a COVID Safe Practice. While mass gatherings are prohibited by the NM
Public Health Order, meetings will not be physically open to the public. All members if
the public will be able to attend and listen to the meeting via google meets with the link
published on the agenda. Public comment may be made during that time and will be entered
and/or read into the meeting minutes (if under 3 minutes). Comments must contain authors

name.
Done at Deming, New Mexico this 11" day of January 2024.
LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
ATTEST:
Ray J. Trejo Berenda McWright, County Clerk

Commissioner, District 1

Colette M. Chandler
Commissioner, District 2

John S. Sweetser
Commissioner, District 3

2 | Page



Be it remembered that at a Regular Meeting of the Board of County Commissioners of Luna County
in Deming New Mexico, on the 11th day of January 2024, the following proceedings were had and
entered of record.

RESOLUTION #24-02

TIMELY PAYMENTS RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, IT IS SOMETIMES NECESSARY TO PAY BILLS AND MAKE PAYMENTS
BETWEEN MEETINGS OF THE Luna County Board of County Commissioners to take
advantage of discounts and make payments in a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, the Luna County Business Office is and has been the central purchasing office since
1974, and handles the purchasing of goods and services and payment of bills;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Luna County Board of
County Commissioners does hereby direct the Luna County Manager or Designee to approve
vouchers and issue warrants as necessary for signature by the Commission Chairman when the
Board is not in session and that a summary of these vouchers be presented to the Commissioners
at their next meeting.

Done at Deming, New Mexico this 11" day of January 2024.
LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ATTEST:

Ray J. Trejo Berenda McWright, County Clerk
Commissioner, District 1

Colette M. Chandler
Commissioner, District 2

John S. Sweetser
Commissioner, District 3



Be it remembered that at a Regular meeting of the Luna County Board of County
Commissioners in Deming New Mexico, on the 11th day of January 2024, the following
proceedings were had and entered of record.

RESOLUTION #24-03

NOTICE OF FEES

WHEREAS, the Luna County Board of County Commissioners finds it necessary to
implement certain fees pertaining to copying, recording, business registrations, transactions
within the Treasurer’s Office, building permit fees, manufactured home/mobile home
installation permit fees, and plan review fees, rural addressing service fees; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Luna County Board of County

Commissioners has determined that the above-mentioned fees be charged as followed:

General Fees:

1.

o

Copies of documents, single-sided, black and white, or electronic:
Letter size, (8 1/2" x 11"), legal size, (8" %2 x 14"), or tabloid size, (11" x 17")
Color Copies

Above tabloid size (11" x 17") up to three (3") feet by four (4') feet
Black and white paper map size:
Color Print:

Above three (3') feet by four (4') feet up to six (6") feet
Black and white paper map:
Color Print:

CDs:

USB Flash Drive:
Each Additional Layer of GIS Data:

$0.50
$1.00

$10.00
$20.00

$25.00
$35.00
$5.00

$25.00
$5.00

Requests for Specialty Maps, Data, or Data Sheets shall be detailed in writing to the GIS
Department for pricing, which will vary depending on the complexity and density of layered
information, data type, media type, and production time.

Page 1 of 6



Recording Fees:

Documents recorded in the office of the county clerk are public records, subject to inspection and
disclosure.

Recording fees are established pursuant to Section 14-8-13 through 17, et seq.,
NMSA,1978. Unless otherwise specified by law, the county clerk shall collect a
recording fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each document filed or recorded by
the county clerk. If the document being filed or recorded contains more than ten entries
to the county recording index, the county clerk shall collect an additional fee of twenty-
five dollars ($25.00) for each additional block of ten or fewer entries to the county
recording index from the document. For each fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00)
collected by the county clerk, eighteen dollars ($18.00) shall be deposited in the county
general fund and seven dollars ($7.00) shall be deposited in the county clerk recording
and filing fund.

Amounts collected from the equipment recording fee shall be deposited into a restricted
account to be used as authorized by Section 14-8-12.2, NMSA, 1978.

Remote Access Fee $200.00 plus Triadic fee

Fees for Transactions within Treasurer’s Department:

(1) Return payment checks for the correct amount: $5.00
This fee will partially cover the cost of returning ad Valorem tax payment checks that are unsigned
or are for an incorrect amount.

(2) Return item (NSF) charges: $30.00
This fee will not be less than current bank charges. This charge will cover the processing cost of the
returned items.

LCDC Department Fees:
Bond Fee: $15.00
Notary Fee: $1.00
Earbuds Fee: $6.00

DWI Program Fees:

Screening Fee: up to $100.00 one-time fee
Treatment Fee $240.00
Compliance Fee: up to $50.00 monthly

Sheriff’s Department Fees:

Civil Process Fee/address/person: $40.00
Report Fee: $0.50 per page
VIN Inspection fee: $35.00

Page 2 of 6



Cost to Luna County-Personal Property (Mobile Home) Sale

The administration and enforcement of delinquent personal property ad valorem taxes is
authorized by Sections 7-38-51 through 56, NMSA 1978.

The delinquent personal property tax sale is authorized by Sections 7-

38-57, 58, 59, NMSA 1867.

The County Treasurer is authorized to recover any cost incurred in preparing for the
sale. To cover all additional costs of preparing for the personal property tax sale, the
Luna County Treasurer hereby imposes the following fees:

€8] Delinquent personal property letter service

fee:
0

$10.0

This charge would be for all accounts that are delinquent for more than 60 days.

2) Demand Warrant Processing Fee:

0

$25.0

This charge would be for all accounts that are delinquent over 180 days.

3) Penalty and Interest:

The P & I charge on accounts that are more than 180 days delinquent will be
retained by Luna County to defray the cost of the personal property tax sales.

Road Department Fees:

Tire Disposal Fees (Drop Off)

Tire Disposal Fees (Bulk Pickup)

Utility Easement Application Fee

Trenching
Aerial
Service Hook up

Meter Replacement
Maintenance

Reinstatement Fees
Appeal Fees

$1.25 Passenger/light truck

$5.00/ Semi truck
$10.00/tractor

$3 Passenger/light truck
$5 Semi Truck
$10 Tractor

$200.00

$.10/ft(12x36) or $.15/ ft (24x48
$150 (<90°) + $1.50/ft thereafter
$50 w/no pavement cut

$100